The University Senate

FACULTY - STUDENT + P&A - CIVIL SERVICE
|
UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA

Academic Freedom and Tenure Committee (AF&T)
May 24, 2024
Minutes of the Meeting

These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of Minnesota
Senate; none of the comments, conclusions or actions reported in these minutes reflect the views of, nor
are they binding on, the senate, the administration, or the Board of Regents.

[In these minutes: Welcome; Discussion on AF&T Recommendations on Unit Statements]

PRESENT: Eric Van Wyk (chair), Carolyn Bishoff, Bruno Chaouat, Sumanth Gopinath, Rachel
Johnson, Margaret Kelly, Chase Krug, Rebecca Krug, Michael Kyba, Danya Leebaw, Beth
Lewis, Kelsey Metzger, Madeline Rowe, Clifford Steer, Christophe Wall-Romana, George
Weiblen

REGRETS: Ron Krebs

1. Welcome
Eric Van Wyk, chair, welcomed members and began the meeting.

2. Discussion on AF&T Recommendations on Unit Statements

Van Wyk said the intention for today’s meeting is to finalize the draft report regarding unit
statements. He said he understands the committee will not end up with a unanimous view about
the contents of the recommendations/report; so a discussion should take place today regarding
how to proceed so that all views can be expressed. Van Wyk said by the end of the meeting, he
hopes to have a document that can be voted on, which he would then send to Provost Croson,
and the Faculty Consultative leadership Mark Bee and Jennifer Goodnough.

Michael Kyba said he wanted to address two points:
e The lack of oversight with regards to what is in the recommendations/report
o The AF&T has not had conversations with people who have been most negatively
impacted by the recent tranche of statements on Palestine; those impacted by the
anti-semitism in those statements; those whose academic freedom has been substantially
negatively affected

The committee had a robust discussion about Kyba’s two points. Points made by committee
members included the following:
e Significant additional time would be needed to invite opinions from a broad spectrum of
those affected



e This committee’s work will be input for the Presidential Task Force on Institutional
Speech (Task Force). It was recommended that the report mention that the AF&T’s work
on this topic will continue; that not all voices with respect to the impact of unit statements
have been heard from; and that this committee does not have the capacity to do all the
necessary ongoing research.

e A recommendation was made that the report focus on suggested practices for making the
process of writing and posting unit statements successful rather than on making
judgments on unit statements that have already been written.

e The point was made that recent statements should be referenced in the report because
they have provided context for the committee’s year-long discussion on this topic.

e There is a sense of urgency in getting the report produced now; if AF&T does not
complete its report now, the Task Force will proceed without AF&T’s input.

e (larification was made that the charge from Provost Croson was to make
recommendations on how and why statements should be issued and to potentially draft
guidelines as to how units should go about the process. The committee was never asked
by the provost to adjudicate the statements posted in October 2023 regarding the
Israel/Palestine conflict.

Committee members continued discussing the timing of the report and the possibility of
including as of yet unheard voices. Considering time constraints, a suggestion was made to
include in the report recommendations that department chairs as well as other voices who have
not yet had an opportunity to share how they have been affected by unit statements be included
in those consulted by the Task Force. After significant discussion it was agreed that along with
its report, recommendations regarding what AF&T feels he Task Force should consider
addressing would be included in a separate letter to the Task Force.

Van Wyk made a motion to proceed with editing the draft document and it was seconded. The
committee voted to approve the motion. Van Wyk noted the motion carried with 10 ayes and two
nays.

Based on recent conversations, Van Wyk said, he added two recommendations to the draft report.
He asked the committee to discuss the new material and said a vote would be held as to whether
or not the committee wished to include the new material in the final report.

The first added language, Van Wyk explained, regards who makes the determination whether or
not a statement is related to a unit’s scholarship; who should decide if disclaimers are needed;
and is the provost in a position to require that a unit statement includes a disclaimer. The second
added language regards who has the authority to remove statements from unit websites.
Comments from the discussion included:

e It should be up to the unit to make a determination if a statement is related to the
scholarly work of the unit.

e It should also be up to the unit to determine if it wishes to make a statement that is not
necessarily related to its scholarly work. For these types of statements, it should be
allowed that the provost has the authority to say that the unit must include a disclaimer.

e Support for including this paragraph in the report because it is entirely possible that a unit
may produce a statement that it does not regard as a statement on a matter of public
concern yet it is perceived as such.



After continued robust discussion, a motion was made and seconded to approve the added
language in the report that supports the right of the provost to request a disclaimer on unit
statements. The motion was unanimously approved.

The second piece of added language, Van Wyk said, recommends that the Faculty Senate be the
body which determines if a unit statement should be removed/taken down. He said he added
language to ensure that the process for removing statements follows a transparent process: the
aggrieved persons write a resolution, present it to the Faculty Consultative Committee for
inclusion on a future agenda of the Faculty Senate at which the resolution would be consulates
and voted on.

Carolyn Bishoff asked committee members if they thought the AF&T’s report should address
situations in which a group of students or staff wish to present a resolution for removal of a
statement if they are the aggrieved parties? Van Wyk said he feels the Faculty Senate should be
responsible for removing statements written by academic units which are driven by faculty.
Senates representing other constituents could make their own determinations, Van Wyk said.

Michael Kyba said there is a logical contradiction in what is being recommended: the
determination of whether or not the principles of academic freedom and responsibility are being
violated “rest with the peers”. To have the Faculty Senate make the determination then does not
adhere to the idea of the peers of those who make a unit statement making the decision as to
whether it should stand or be removed. Bruno Chaouat said the Faculty Senate consists of faculty
peers but not disciplinary peers. The question was asked: Can these statements be judged by
people outside of the discipline? Kyba asked the committee to include the idea that there is an
inherent contradiction in the AF&T’s final report.

Van Wyk then asked if there were any objections to including in the report the recommendation
that the Faculty Senate be the body which determines whether or not a statement should/can be
removed; there were none.

Van Wyk invited the committee to discuss whether or not it should recommend in its report that
something other than a simple majority be required when these matters are voted on at the
Faculty Senate. After some discussion, it was agreed that the determination should be made by
the Faculty Senate, and was not under the purview of this committee to decide. Chase Krug
called for unanimous consent as there were no objections.

Van Wyk and the committee then worked through the document section by section, discussing
proposed amendments and suggested reformatting. The committee continued to share varying
opinions on whether or not a unit enjoys the protections of academic freedom and responsibility.
Consensus was not reached. It was determined that a minority report would be written by
relevant committee members and would accompany the report. The committee supported the
idea of including with the report and minority report, a letter to the Task Force outlining the
substantive work that the committee has gone through to arrive at its report and recommendation.

In the interest of time, Van Wyk thanked committee members and adjourned the meeting.

Geanette Poole
University Senate Office



